
March 19, 2020

Jeff Ahner  

Frito Lay Vancouver 

4808 NW Fruit Valley Road 

Vancouver, WA  98660-1242 

Re: Request for Information on Status of VCP Project for the following Site: 

 Site Name:  Frito Lay Vancouver 

 Site Address:  4808 NW Fruit Valley Road, Vancouver, Clark County, WA 98660 

 Facility/Site ID:  81587474 

 Cleanup Site ID:  6703 

 VCP Project No.:  SW1024 

Dear Jeff Ahner: 

The Department of Ecology (Ecology) appreciates your decision to clean up the Frito Lay 

Vancouver (Site) independently. However, our records indicate that you have not conducted any 

remedial actions during the past year at the Site. This letter requests information on the status 

of your cleanup and your continued interest in the Voluntary Cleanup Program (VCP). 

Request for Information 

Please submit the following information to Ecology within 30 days of the date of this letter: 

 Any reports documenting the cleanup, including any additional groundwater monitoring 

reports. The last report received was dated October 21, 2014. The Site groundwater 

monitoring plan, dated November 30, 2012, indicates monitoring events would occur 

every eighteen month intervals for a period of at least 5 years.  

 Plan and schedule for completing the cleanup. 

 All required Electronic Data per Policy 840.1 Multiple data are plotting as the same 

location in Ecology’s Environmental Information Management (EIM) database. Please 

verify individual data locations are plotting correctly. 

 Information needed to complete the draft environmental covenant, discussed below. 

                                                 
1   https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/documents/1609050.pdf 

https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/documents/1609050.pdf
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/documents/1609050.pdf
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Next Steps 

Based on your response, Ecology will decide whether to continue providing you services under 

the VCP. We will notify you of our decision in writing. Please note that we will terminate the 

Agreement governing this Project if you do not respond to this request. 

Draft Environmental Covenant 

This technical assistance is provided to help you complete the draft environmental covenant. 

Ecology’s record for this Site indicates that an interim action conducted at the Site in 2004 

removed approximately 248 tons of petroleum contaminated soil associated with a petroleum 

release near the truck lift station. However, contaminated soil exceeding proposed cleanup 

standards was left in place beneath the hydraulic lift.  

In our July 15, 2010, opinion letter for the Site (enclosed), Ecology indicated that further action 

was required to clean up the Site. That opinion provided Ecology’s evaluation and concurrence 

with Frito Lay’s use of an environmental covenant as part of a preferred remedial alternative 

until remaining contaminated soil could be removed. Ecology’s Site record for this project 

currently includes an uncompleted environmental covenant for the Site.   

Supporting documentation for the environmental covenant is needed for Ecology to determine 

that the cleanup meets the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA) requirements and that a no further 

action opinion is appropriate for the Site. Ecology needs the following supporting documentation 

to complete the environmental covenant: 

1. Draft Covenant:  Ecology needs a draft covenant memorializing proposed institutional and 

engineered controls for all impacted properties. Also provide the environmental covenant2 in 

electronic word-processing-compatible format. Include the following as enclosures to the 

draft covenant: 

a. Plan View Maps and Geologic Cross Sections:  Include delineated concentration 

(1) isopleth plan view maps and (2) geologic cross sections showing the extents of 

remaining contamination at the Site. Include the boundaries of the MTCA facility and 

the Property. Indicate where insufficient data are available to delineate to natural 

background concentrations. These maps will be used to indicate where contamination 

remains at the Site after closure. For consistency with other sites in our program, 

Ecology prefers that data for these maps are provided in units of milligrams per 

kilogram (mg/kg) for soil, and micrograms per liter (µg/L) for groundwater. 

b. Title Search:  Provide a complete title search as part of Exhibit A, legal description. 

                                                 
2   See the word processing formatted document at: https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/1509054.html. 

https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/1509054.html
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c. Land Survey:  Provide a land survey of impacted properties and rights-of-way, including 

platting and dedications. 

d. Review the Title Search and Land Survey to Determine if Existing Easements 

Include any Area of Proposed Engineered or Institutional Controls: 

i. Develop a plan view map or sketch of the locations of existing easements sufficient 

for Ecology to concur with your evaluation of whether any easements include the 

areas of proposed engineered or institutional controls. 

ii. For each easement that intersects proposed controls at the Site, either provide  

1) A signed subordination agreement. 

2) Sufficient evaluation of specific easement terms for Ecology to concur that the 

easement will not impact the integrity of the cleanup. 

When reviewing easements, Ecology assumes that Property boundaries extend to 

the centerline of the adjacent NW Fruit Valley Road. 

e. Financial Assurance Requirements:  Ecology suggests contacting our financial 

assurance specialist for direction on evaluating financial assurance requirements.3 

Review the financial assurance requirements of WAC 173-340-440(11). Include any 

needed financial assurance mechanisms and implementation of financial assurances 

based on the requirements. Ecology notes that while financial assurances may not be 

necessary at this Site, Ecology may rescind the no further action opinion without prior 

notification if the terms of an environmental covenant are not followed. If financial 

assurances are determined to be unnecessary, include sufficient explanation for Ecology 

to concur. 

f. Local Government Notification Requirements:  Please document how the local 

government notification requirements of WAC 173-340-440(10) are completed. Ecology 

suggests providing the draft covenant and enclosure package to the local land use 

planning authority for review and comment. If comments are provided, update the draft 

covenant based on comments, and provide Ecology the correspondence, local 

government comments, and how those comments were addressed. If no response is 

received, include sufficient information for Ecology to concur that the correct local 

government agency was notified, the date they were notified, and that comments were 

sought. At this Site, Ecology believes that the appropriate local land use planning 

authority may be the Clark County Community Planning Department. 

  

                                                 
3   https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/Guidance-technical-assistance/Dangerous-waste-guidance/Dispose-recycle-or-

treat/Financial-assurance 

https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/Guidance-technical-assistance/Dangerous-waste-guidance/Dispose-recycle-or-treat/Financial-assurance
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/Guidance-technical-assistance/Dangerous-waste-guidance/Dispose-recycle-or-treat/Financial-assurance
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g. Long-Term Groundwater Monitoring and Cap Monitoring / Contingency Plan:  

Long-term monitoring of the existing groundwater monitoring well network is needed to 

ensure the remedy is effective. Frito Lay previously proposed an eighteen month 

confirmation groundwater monitoring frequency for the first five years of post-closure 

monitoring, so that four quarters of seasonal groundwater results would be obtained over 

the five years prior to Ecology’s first required regular review.   

Please update the long-term groundwater and cap monitoring and reporting plan for the 

Site based upon current groundwater conditions. Include a detailed contingency plan for 

both groundwater and cap monitoring indicating the steps that will be taken in the event 

of exceedances or cap failure. If needed, please contact Ecology for specific 

contingency planning suggestions.  

Reporting on the cap condition may be conducted at the same time as long term 

groundwater monitoring, and should be detailed in the monitoring plan. An initial 

inspection with photographs and description of the cap to be monitored should be 

included with the plan. 

The plan should also include provisions to ensure that all environmental data is provided 

in accordance with WAC 173-340-840(5) and Ecology Toxics Cleanup Program Policy 

840 (Data Submittal Requirements). 

Contact Information 

We are committed to working with you to accomplish the prompt and effective cleanup of the 

Site. If you have any questions about this request, please contact me at (360) 407-6266 or 

joseph.kasperski@ecy.wa.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Kasperski, LG 

LUST Site Manager 

Toxics Cleanup Program 

Southwest Regional Office 

By certified mail:  9489 0090 0027 6092 9869 90 

Enclosure: Ecology’s July 15, 2010, opinion letter for the Site  

cc: Jennifer Brightman-Davis, PepsiCo 

 Nicholas Acklam, Ecology (by email) 

 Ecology Site File 

mailto:joseph.kasperski@ecy.wa.gov





































